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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION 

 
TracFone Wireless, Inc.:     ) 
       ) Docket No. 09-0211 
Application for Authority to Operate as a  ) 
Wireless Reseller on a     ) 
Statewide Basis in the State of Illinois.  ) 
 

STAFF OF THE ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION’S 
INITIAL RESPONSE TO TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC.’S 

APPLICATION TO OPERATE 
 

 NOW COMES the Staff of the Illinois Commerce Commission (hereafter “the 

Staff”), by and through its counsel, and, in response to the Application for Service 

authority of TracFone Wireless, Inc. (hereafter “TracFone” or “Applicant”), states as 

follows: 

1. TracFone filed its Application for Authority to Operate as a Wireless 

Reseller on a Statewide Basis in the State of Illinois on April 20, 2009. See, generally, 

Application.  

2. TracFone’s Application recites, inter alia, that it seeks authority to operate 

as a reseller of wireless telecommunications services in the State of Illinois. Application 

at 1.  It intends to provide such services to customers on a prepaid basis. Application at 

6. It does not utilize its own facilities in Illinois. Id.  

3. TracFone applied for its Certificate of Authority to do business as a 

Foreign Corporation in Illinois on March 20, 2009, and obtained such certificate on April 

16, 2009. Application, Ex. B at 7-9. 

4. Notwithstanding this fact, TracFone has done business in Illinois since 

approximately 1997. Tr., May 18, 2009. Indeed, Statements made by TracFone in 
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collateral, contemporaneous filings indicate that TracFone has “provided CMRS service 

throughout Illinois continuously for the past ten years.” Petition at 2, In the Matter of 

Petition of TracFone Wireless, Inc. for Designation as an Eligible Telecommunications 

Carrier in the State of Illinois for the Limited Purpose of Offering Lifeline Service to 

Qualified Households, ICC Docket No. 09-0213 (April 20, 2009).  

5. Section 13.05 of the Illinois Business Corporation Act provides in relevant 

part that: “a foreign corporation organized for profit, before it transacts business in this 

State, shall procure authority so to do from the Secretary of State.” 805 ILCS 5/13.05. 

6. TracFone has, accordingly, been conducting its operations in violation of 

Section 13.05 of the Illinois Business Corporation Act for the past ten years, at a 

minimum. 

7. Likewise, TracFone is now for the first time seeking authority from the 

Commission to do business as a reseller of wireless telecommunications service in 

Illinois, notwithstanding the fact that it has conducted such business for ten to twelve 

years by its own admission.  

8. The Commission has found that compliance with filing requirements, and 

general obedience to the laws of Illinois, is an indicia of managerial resources and 

abilities. Order at 60, Illinois Bell Telephone Company, Inc. -vs- Global NAPs Illinois, 

Inc: Complaint pursuant to Section 252(e) of the Federal Telecommunications Act of 

1996, 47 U.S.C. §252(e), and Sections 4-101, 10-101, and 10-108 of the Illinois Public 

Utilities Act, 220 ILCS 5/4-101, 220 ILCS 5/10-101, and 220 ILCS 5/10-108, ICC Docket 

No. 08-0105 (February 11, 2009). 
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9. Further, prepaid wireless carriers are required to remit a surcharge to 

support 9-1-1service, under the specific terms of Section 17 of the Wireless Emergency 

Telephone Safety Act (hereafter “WETSA”). 50 ILCS 751/17. TracFone has not remitted 

such surcharges since early 2005. While TracFone has challenged the constitutionality 

of this provision both on its face and as applied to TracFone, see TracFone Wireless, 

Inc. v. Illinois Commerce Commission, Case No. 07 CH 33117 (Cook County Circuit 

Court, Chancery Division), it has neither remitted the surcharges under protest nor, so 

far as Staff is aware, collected them and placed them in escrow. While the Staff is not 

certain that this issue should be an impediment to certification, the Staff is of the opinion 

that the Commission should be aware of the matter in its consideration, in light of the 

vital nature of 9-1-1 service to the health, safety and welfare of Illinoisans. 

10. Accordingly, evidence exists on the face of the Petition that TracFone has 

failed to comply with the state’s laws for an extended period. The evidence is such that 

the Commission might find TracFone to lack the necessary managerial resources and 

abilities. 

11. Therefore, the Staff seeks leave to conduct additional discovery and, if 

warranted, file testimony in this matter.  
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WHEREFORE, the Staff of the Illinois Commerce Commission respectfully 

requests that its recommendations be adopted in their entirety consistent with the 

arguments set forth herein. 

       Respectfully submitted, 
       ___________________________ 
       Matthew L. Harvey 
       Counsel for the Staff of the 
       Illinois Commerce Commission 
 

Illinois Commerce Commission 
Office of General Counsel 
160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite C-800 
Chicago, Illinois  60601 

       (312) 793-2877 
May 29, 2009 

 


